
   

A G E N D A  
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF MERCED 

 
Regular Meeting   

Tuesday, September 20, 2022 
12:00 p.m.  

 

Closed session immediately following  
 

Housing Authority of the County of Merced   Rick Osorio, Chairperson 
Administrative Building      Hub Walsh, Vice-Chair 
405 “U” Street       Evelyn Dorsey 
Board Room – Building B (Second Floor)   Robert Dylina 
Merced, CA 95341       Diana Odom Gunn 
(209) 386-4139       Margaret Pia 
               
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL    
 

II. UNSCHEDULED ORAL COMMUNICATION 

 

III. COMMISSIONER and/or AGENCY ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA  
                                                  

         (M/S/C): ____/____/____           
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC –  
This portion of the meeting is set aside for members of the public to comment on any item within the subject-matter 
jurisdiction of the Commission, but not appearing on the agenda. Items presented under public comment may not be 
discussed or acted upon by the Commission at this time.  
 
For items appearing on the agenda, the public is invited to comment at the time the item is called for consideration by 
the Commission. Any person addressing the Commission under Public Comment will be limited to a 3-minute 
presentation.  
 
All persons addressing the Commission are requested to state their name and address for the record. Public 
comments must not interfere with orderly discussion or otherwise disrupt the meeting (CA Gov. Code 54957.9, SB 
1100 (2022)).  Slanderous, profane, threatening remarks or disorderly conduct that disrupts the meeting are 
prohibited (CA Gov. Code 36813, White v. City of Norwalk, 900 F.2d 1421 (1990)).  Disruptive conduct may be 
grounds for removal from the meeting. 

All persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations may contact the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced at (209) 386-4139, 72 hours prior to the public meeting. 
 
All supporting documentation is available for public review in the office of the Clerk of the Board located in 
the Housing Authority Administration Building, Second Floor, 405 “U” Street, Merced, CA 95341 during 
regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

 
The Agenda is available online at www.merced-pha.com 

 
Use of cell phones, pagers, and other communication devices is prohibited while the Board 
Meeting is in session.  Please turn all devices off or place on silent alert and leave the room to use.

1 of 127



   

IV. APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING MEETING MINUTES 
 

1. July 13, 2022, Special Meeting                   (M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Rent Delinquency Report July 2022 
 

2. Financial Reports for July 2022 
 

3. Public Housing Occupancy/Vacancy Report 
 

4. HCV Special Program Counts 
 

         (M/S/C): ____/____/_____        
 

VI. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEM(S) 
 

1. Staff Report – Clerk of the Board/Human Resources/Development 
 

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

VIII. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 
 

None 
 

IX. RESOLUTION ITEM(S) 
 

1. Resolution No. 2022-10: Awarding the Carbon Monoxide Detector 
Conversion contract to Beam Construction and Management Inc. and 
authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other 
action necessary to carry out the completion of the work. 

 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

2. Resolution No. 2022-11: Awarding the Atwater Migrant Center Roofing, 
Gutters, and Swamp Coolers contract to Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to 
sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the completion of the 
work. 

 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

3. Resolution No. 2022-12: Awarding the Los Banos Migrant Center Roofing, 
Gutters, and Swamp Coolers contract to Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to 
sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the completion of the 
work. 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

4. Resolution No. 2022-13:  Awarding the Merced Migrant Center Roofing, 
Gutters, and Swamp Coolers contract to Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to 
sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the completion of the 
work. 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

2 of 127



   

5. Resolution No. 2022-14: Awarding the Felix Torres Migrant Center Roofing 
contract to Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, 
Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the 
completion of the work. 

 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

6. Resolution No. 2022-15: Awarding the Merced Migrant Center Mini Split 
contract to Beam Construction and Management Inc. and authorize the 
Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action 
necessary to carry out the completion of the work. 

 
 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

7. Resolution No. 2022-16: Awarding the Atwater Mini Split Installation 
contract to Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. and authorize the Executive 
Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry 
out the completion of the work. 

 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

8. Resolution No. 2022-17: Awarding the Los Banos Mini Split Installation 
contract to Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. and authorize the Executive 
Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry 
out the completion of the work. 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

9. Resolution No. 2022-18:  Resolution of the Housing Authority of the County 
of Merced Honoring the memory of Commissioner Jose Manuel Resendez 
Jr.  

 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
                                                                                   

X. ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

1. Action Item 2022-A-02: Consideration of Action of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of Merced Regarding 
Payoff Demand, Substitution of Trustee & Reconveyance of Deed for 1522 
Vine Circle, Atwater, CA 95301.  

 

(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 
 

XI. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS  
 

1. Moment of Silence in Memory of Commissioner Jose Manuel Resendez Jr. 
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

1. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release (§ 54957) 
  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT   
(M/S/C): ____/____/____ 

3 of 127



   
 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF MERCED 

 

Regular Meeting  
Tuesday, July 13, 2022 

 
I. The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Osorio at 9:09 a.m. and the 

Secretary was instructed to call the roll. 
 

Commissioners Present:   Commissioners Absent:                 
Rick Osorio, Chairperson  Hub Walsh, Vice-Chairperson 
Evelyne Dorsey  Jose Resendez 
Robert Dylina       
Diana Odom Gunn     
Margaret Pia   
 

   Chairperson Osorio declared there was a quorum present.  
   

Staff Present: 
Rosa Vazquez, Executive Director/Board Secretary 
David Ritchie, Legal Counsel 
Blanca Arrate, Director of Housing Programs 
Tracy Jackson, Director of Housing Programs 
Melina Basso, Director of Procurement & Asset Management 
Cliff Hatanaka, Finance Officer 
Bruce Milgrom, Finance Officer 

 

Others Present:  
 

None 
 

II. UNSCHEDULED ORAL COMMUNICATION  
 

None  
 

III. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Public Housing Agency Annual Plan – 9:11 a.m. – 9:12 a.m.  
 

(M/S/C): Commissioner Odom Gunn/Commissioner Pia/Motion Passed 
 

IV. COMMISSIONER and/or AGENCY ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO THE 
AGENDA 

  

              None 
   

(M/S/C): Commissioner Pia/Commissioner Odom Gunn/Motion Passed 
 

4 of 127



   
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING MEETING MINUTES 
 

1. June 21, 2022, Regular Meeting  
 

(M/S/C): Commissioner Pia/Commissioner Odom Gunn/Motion Passed 
 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Rent Delinquency Report for June 2022 
 
(M/S/C): Commissioner Dylina/Commissioner Odom Gunn/Motion Passed  

 

2. Track Summary Report for June 2022 
 

(M/S/C): Commissioner Pia/Commissioner Odom Gunn/Motion Passed  
 

VII. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEM(S)  
 

1. Ethics Training (2 Hours, Compliant with AB 1234) – Tabled for a future 
meeting. Date to be determined. 
 

(M/S/C): Commissioner Dylina/Commissioner Odom Gunn/Motion Passed 
 

2. Legal Counsel Ritchie reviewed a draft of the Public Agency Officials & Staff 
Roles provided in the meeting packet. At the direction of the Board he will 
develop the policies and procedures for review. 
 

3. The Boad received an update the Authority’s development efforts. The 
Auhtority submitted a request to convert a market-rate apartment complex 
it currently owns into a Public Housing development securing that complex 
as affordable housing. The Authority continues to follow up on a request to 
HUD to increase the current PBV allocation. This request continues to await 
approval. Lastly, the Authority is finalizing the MOU between CalAHA and 
the Authority for consulting services. This agreement will see CalAHA 
assiting the Authority in the development of small homes at the Midway 
Apartment complex in the city of Dos Palos.  

 
Caucus at 10:01 a.m. – 10:15 a.m. 

 

4. Director Jackson provided follow up to the complaint received by the Board 
at the May 2022 meeting. Director Jackson has had communications with 
the resident and has answered all of the inquiries the resident had. 
Additionally, a report outlining the waiting list lottery processes was 
provided. This option was being discussed as a option to expedite the 
selection and screening process. Unfortunately, this process does not 
provide that as the requirements for documents and other verifications 
remains in place and this is the stage that is the lengthiest.  

 
The other matter discussed was the status, future, and issues involving the 
Shelter Plus Care grant wich funds eight vouchers targeted for individuals 

5 of 127



   
 

experiencing or at-risk of homelessness receiving supportive services 
throught Behavioral Health & Reovery Services (BHRS).  
 

Caucus at 11:10 a.m. – 11:25 a.m. 
 

VIII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

1. The Authority received information from Bond Counsel about the possibility 
of refinancing the previously issued Pension Obligation Bond as interest 
rates are declining and this could further Authority savings. Bond Counsel 
will perform an analysis prior to any further action. In the event the analysis 
if favorable a presentation will be prepared for the Finance Ad-Hoc 
Committee for review and subsequent Board approval.  
 

2. Executive Director Vazquez met with the Boys & Girls Club Director to 
discuss a partnership between both agencies. Said partnership will include 
use of Authority meeting space for the coordination of events. This 
partnership will benefit Auhtority resident children as it will provide activities 
for them without the need of long travel. 

 
Caucus at 12:37 p.m. – 1:24 p.m. 

 

IX. WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE 
 

None  
 

X. RESOLUTIONS ITEM(S) 
 

1. Resolution Item No. 2022-05: Approving the PHA Annual Plan Fiscal Year 
2022 for submission to the Department of Housing & Urban Development. 

 

  (M/S/C): Commissioner Pia/Commissioner Dorsey/Motion Passed 
 

2. Resolution Item No. 2022-06: Approving the revisions to the Public 
Housing Admissions and Occupancy Policy (ACOP). 
 

  (M/S/C): Commissioner Odom Gunn/Commissioner Dylina/Motion Passed 
 

3. Resolution Item No. 2022-07: Approving the revisions to the Housing 
Choice Voucher Program Administrative Plan. 
 

  (M/S/C): Commissioner Pia/Commissioner Odom Gunn/Motion Passed 
 

4. Resolution Item No. 2022-08: Approbing the Operational Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023. 
 

  (M/S/C): Commissioner Odom Gunn/Commissioner Pia/Motion Passed 
 

5. Resolution Item No. 2022-09: Declaring certain vehicles as surplus and 
authorizing their sale or disposition as excess property. 
 

  (M/S/C): Commissioner Odom Gunn/Commissioner Pia/Motion Passed 

6 of 127



   
 

XI. ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

None 
 

XII. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEM(S)  
 

1. Board/Staff Strategic Planning Session – Agency Mission and Community 
Needs Discussion – Executive Director Vazquez reviewed the goals the 
Authoirty achieved during the past year. The Authority refinanced a high-
interest bond for the Merced Commons Apartments avoiding a hefty $1M 
ballon payment while also securing funds for capital needs improvements for 
the site. Additionally, the Authority restructured the current organizational 
chart and reinstated positions that will improve service to client while also 
improving workload for staff. The Authority has procured a Grant Coordinator 
that will facilitate and expand the Authority’s claim on funding available. 
These goals have been achieved with the intent to execute the Board’s vision 
of expanding the Authority’s housing portfolio securing affordable housing 
for those in need. 
 

2. Board/Staff Strategic Planning Session – Discussion and Analysis of Future 
Board Goals/Objectives. Over the upcoming year, the Authority has been 
directed to continue to explore and execute ways to increase affordable 
housing; explore ways to become more energy efficient; review more 
streamlined processes for applicants, and other items related to the Board 
and training. 

 

XIII. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS 
 

The Board requests that the following items be made available for review: a map 
of all Authority sites, MOU, procurement and finance policies. Additionally, 
guidance was given pertaining to the development of Public Agency Officials & 
Staff Roles. 
  

XIV. CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

None  
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at  
4:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

_________________________   Date: August 16, 2022 
Chairperson Signature   
 
 
 
 

_________________________   Date: August 16, 2022 
Secretary Signature 

7 of 127



Property 0 - 30 days 31-60 days 61 - 90 days Over 90 days Total Unpaid 
Charges Balance

AMP 1
ca023001  PH - Merced 5,190.12 2,398.87 0.00 13,024.76 20,613.75 20,613.75
ca023010  PH - Merced 6,694.83 5,616.71 0.00 12,842.33 25,153.87 25,153.87
ca023013  PH - Merced Sr 913.35 297.94 0.00 1,191.00 2,402.29 2,402.29
ca023021  PH - Acquisition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ca023023  PH - Acquisition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
AMP 1 TOTALS 12,798.30 8,313.52 0.00 27,058.09 48,169.91 48,169.91

AMP 2
CA023003  PH - Atwater - Cameo 1,567.00 1,397.00 0.00 8,506.00 11,470.00 11,470.00
ca023006  PH - Livingston 778.69 415.00 0.00 1,558.06 2,751.75 2,751.75
012a  PH - Atwater 3,757.87 4,260.52 0.00 14,352.29 22,370.68 22,370.68
012b  PH - Winton 24.60 0.00 0.00 -251.00 -226.40 -226.40
AMP 2 TOTALS 6,128.16 6,072.52 0.00 24,165.35 36,366.03 36,366.03

AMP 3
ca023002  PH - Los Banos 638.00 636.00 0.00 4,592.74 5,866.74 5,866.74
ca023004  PH - Los Banos - Abby, B, C & D 2,609.50 2,213.00 0.00 3,304.79 8,127.29 8,127.29
ca023005  PH - Dos Palos - West Globe 721.00 561.00 0.00 902.00 2,184.00 2,184.00
ca023011 PH - Los Banos - J & K St 1,359.24 1,225.00 0.00 769.92 3,354.16 3,354.16
012c  PH - Dos Palos - Alleyne 934.48 391.00 0.00 19,114.00 20,439.48 20,439.48
012d  PH - Dos Palos - Globe 917.00 -82.00 0.00 0.00 835.00 835.00
AMP 3 TOTALS 7,179.22 4,944.00 0.00 28,683.45 40,806.67 40,806.67

AMP 4
ca023024  PH 1st Street 1,000.00 114.00 0.00 104.00 1,218.00 1,218.00
AMP 4 TOTALS 1,000.00 114.00 0.00 104.00 1,218.00 1,218.00

VALLEY VIEW
atw  Atwater Elderly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
dp  Dos Palos Elderly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
mid  Midway 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00
pbcb - atw 495.00 420.00 0.00 -195.51 719.49 719.49
pbcb - dp 894.00 567.00 0.00 -587.72 873.28 873.28
pbcb - mid 2,417.00 1,397.00 0.00 19,344.68 23,158.68 23,158.68
VALLEY VIEW TOTALS 3,806.00 2,384.00 0.00 18,761.45 24,951.45 24,951.45

FELIX TORRES YEAR ROUND
ft.yr Felix Torres Year Round Center 6,572.82 3,882.00 0.00 8,518.00 18,972.82 18,972.82
FELIX TORRES YEAR ROUND TOTALS 6,572.82 3,882.00 0.00 8,518.00 18,972.82 18,972.82

HOUSING AUTHORITY TOTALS 37,484.50 25,710.04 0.00 107,290.34 170,484.88 170,484.88  

Aged Receivables Report as of 7/31/2022

8 of 127



Property 0 - 30 days 31-60 days 61 - 90 days Over 90 days Total Unpaid 
Charges Balance

AMP 1
ca023001  PH - Merced 5,444.68 0.00 3,197.04 11,053.34 19,695.06 19,695.06
ca023010  PH - Merced 4,451.58 0.00 3,280.18 1,914.31 9,646.07 9,646.07
ca023013  PH - Merced Sr 956.35 0.00 532.35 1,493.59 2,982.29 2,982.29
ca023021  PH - Acquisition 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ca023023  PH - Acquisition 198.00 0.00 198.00 1,933.00 2,329.00 2,329.00
AMP 1 TOTALS 11,050.61 0.00 7,207.57 16,394.24 34,652.42 34,652.42

AMP 2
CA023003  PH - Atwater - Cameo 498.00 0.00 94.00 -446.00 146.00 146.00
ca023006  PH - Livingston 1,558.00 0.00 380.00 2,153.06 4,091.06 4,091.06
012a  PH - Atwater 1,944.77 0.00 1,926.00 2,096.46 5,967.23 5,967.23
012b  PH - Winton 24.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 24.60 24.60
AMP 2 TOTALS 4,025.37 0.00 2,400.00 3,803.52 10,228.89 10,228.89

AMP 3
ca023002  PH - Los Banos 1,226.59 0.00 1,185.00 2,528.00 4,939.59 4,939.59
ca023004  PH - Los Banos - Abby, B, C & D 263.00 0.00 -249.00 -6,893.21 -6,879.21 -6,879.21
ca023005  PH - Dos Palos - West Globe 567.00 0.00 558.00 729.00 1,854.00 1,854.00
ca023011 PH - Los Banos - J & K St 758.24 0.00 412.00 -62.08 1,108.16 1,108.16
012c  PH - Dos Palos - Alleyne 950.32 0.00 0.00 -181.00 769.32 769.32
012d  PH - Dos Palos - Globe 550.00 0.00 193.00 -82.00 661.00 661.00
AMP 3 TOTALS 4,315.15 0.00 2,099.00 -3,961.29 2,452.86 2,452.86

AMP 4
ca023024  PH 1st Street 0.00 0.00 433.00 -723.00 -290.00 -290.00
AMP 4 TOTALS 0.00 0.00 433.00 -723.00 -290.00 -290.00

VALLEY VIEW
atw  Atwater Elderly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
dp  Dos Palos Elderly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
mid  Midway 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00
pbcb - atw 495.00 0.00 420.00 145.49 1,060.49 1,060.49
pbcb - dp 684.00 0.00 0.00 -558.72 125.28 125.28
pbcb - mid 2,115.87 0.00 2,056.00 18,146.81 22,318.68 22,318.68
VALLEY VIEW TOTALS 3,294.87 0.00 2,476.00 17,933.58 23,704.45 23,704.45

FELIX TORRES YEAR ROUND
ft.yr Felix Torres Year Round Center 5,894.82 0.00 4,371.00 10,358.00 20,623.82 20,623.82
FELIX TORRES YEAR ROUND TOTALS 5,894.82 0.00 4,371.00 10,358.00 20,623.82 20,623.82

HOUSING AUTHORITY TOTALS 28,580.82 0.00 18,986.57 43,805.05 91,372.44 91,372.44  

Aged Receivables Report as for  8/2022  - As of 9-01-2022

9 of 127



YTD Actual YTD Budget  Variance % Var Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME  (1) 579,637 493,731 85,906 17 658,301
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME  (2) 508,695 512,595 -3,900 -1 683,465

 TOTAL INCOME 1,088,332 1,006,326 82,006 8 1,341,766

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (3,4,5) 260,392 319,491 59,099 18 425,972
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 1,691 1,278 -413 -32 1,700
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 161,001 159,228 -1,773 -1 212,287
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (6) 262,327 281,844 19,517 7 375,771
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES  (7,8) 128,737 114,399 -14,338 -13 152,544
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 1,876 3,753 1,877 50 5,000
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 32,958 32,958 0 0 43,947
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 28,287 28,287 0 0 37,716

 TOTAL EXPENSES 877,269 941,238 63,969 19 1,254,937

 NET INCOME 211,063 65,088 145,975 224 86,829

(1)  Lower Covid related rents, not realized  $85M
(2)  Lower Operating Subsidy  -$4M
(3)  Lower Personnel Costs  $32M
(4)  Lower Legal Expenses  $11M
(5)  Lower Asset Mgmt Fees to be paid at yearend  $15M
(6)  Lower Supplies and higher Contract Maintenance Costs  $15M
(7)  Higher Property Insurance Costs -$9M
(8)  Higher PILOT Expenses, based on higher rent revenue -$9M

Financial Statement - AMP 1 (.fs-amp1)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

10 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Infav Fav/-Infav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME  (1) 448,425 387,450 60,975 16 516,599
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME  (2) 330,676 345,744 -15,068 -4 460,996

 TOTAL INCOME 779,101 733,194 45,907 6 977,595

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (3,4,5)) 178,656 223,668 45,012 20 298,227
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 1,377 1,197 -180 -15 1,600
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES  (6) 139,656 148,419 8,763 6 197,902
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (7) 250,123 228,402 -21,721 -10 304,498
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (8,9) 97,522 89,361 -8,161 -9 119,157
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 1,076 846 -230 -27 1,125
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 14,355 14,355 0 23 19,145
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 53,529 53,532 3 0 71,372

 TOTAL EXPENSES 736,293 759,780 23,487 14 1,013,026

 NET INCOME 42,808 -26,586 69,394 -261 -35,431

(1)  Lower COVID related rent, not realized  $61M
(2)  Lower Operating Fund  -$15m
(3)  Lower Personnel Costs  $25M
(4)  Lower Legal Expenses  $5M
(5)  Lower Asset Management Fees to be paid at yearend $10M
(6)  Lower Utilities, invoices not yet received $9M
(7)  Higher Maintenance Supplies  -$15M
(8)  Higher Property Insurance Expense  -$6M
(9)  Higher PILOT Expenses, based on higher rent revenues  -$7M

Financial Statement - AMP 2 (.fs-amp2)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

11 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 446,534 368,064 78,470 21 490,756
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME (2) 354,306 382,311 -28,005 -7 509,747

 TOTAL INCOME 800,840 750,375 50,465 7 1,000,503

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (3,4) 224,222 247,572 23,350 13 330,095
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 1,275 819 -456 -56 1,100
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES  (5) 114,395 119,007 4,613 4 158,688
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES  (6,7) 210,080 247,005 36,925 15 329,340
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES  (8,9) 98,486 84,888 -13,597 -16 113,185
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 2,173 1,125 -1,048 -93 1,500
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES  16,560 16,560 0 42 22,083
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 43,819 43,821 2 0 58,425

 TOTAL EXPENSES 711,009 760,797 49,789 18 1,014,416

 NET INCOME 89,831 -10,422 100,254 -962 -13,913

(1)  Lower COVID related rents. Not realized $78M
(2)  Lower Operating Subsidy  -$28M
(3)  Lower Legal Expenses  $9M
(4)  Lower Asset Mgmr Fees to be paid at yearend $11M
(5)  Lower Utilities Expenses, invoices not yet received $5M
(6)  Lower Maintenance Personnel Expenses  $40M
(7)  Higher Maintenance Contract Services (HVAC)  -$4M
(8)  Higher Property Insurance due to prior year experience
(9)  Higher PILOT costs due to higher Tenant Rents  -$8M

Financial Statement - AMP 3 (.fs-amp3)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

12 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 16,701 10,341 6,360 62 13,782
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME 20,286 21,465 -1,179 -5 28,618

 TOTAL INCOME 36,987 31,806 5,181 16 42,400

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 7,101 9,108 2,007 22 12,198
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 2 0 -2 N/A 0
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 5,053 4,743 -310 -7 6,323
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES  (2,3) 14,902 4,797 -10,105 -211 6,429
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 3,216 2,493 -723 -29 3,316
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 0 72 72 100 100
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 918 918 0 0 1,221
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 35,818 35,820 2 0 47,757

 TOTAL EXPENSES 67,009 57,951 -9,058 -26 77,344

 NET INCOME -30,022 -26,145 -3,877 11 -34,944

(1)  Lower COVID relanted rent, not realized $6M
(2)  Higher Building Supplies  -$3M
(3)  Higher Contract Work (Building and Landscape)  -$7M

AMP4 - 1st Street, Merced (.fs-amp4)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

13 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 TOTAL GRANT INCOME  (1,2,3) 15,389,363 18,669,339 -3,279,976 -18 24,892,450
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 595 2,241 -1,646 -73 3,000

 TOTAL INCOME 15,389,958 18,671,580 -3,281,622 -18 24,895,450

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (4,5,6) 1,244,280 1,398,033 153,753 16 1,864,061
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 3,614 0 -3,614 N/A 0
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (7) 32,099 18,054 -18,545 -1,222 24,075
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 59,204 67,230 8,026 12 89,635
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS  (8,9) 14,952,394 17,097,831 2,145,437 13 22,797,109
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 57,429 57,429 0 0 76,570

 TOTAL EXPENSES 16,349,020 18,638,577 2,285,057 12 24,851,450

 NET INCOME -959,062 33,003 -996,565 -3,020 44,000

(1)  HUD withheld additional funding issued in March 2021 -$1,113M
(2)  Lower than forecasted HAP Funding -$2,210M
(3)  Higher Admin Fees  $36M
(4)  Lower Legal Fees $8M
(5)  Lower Mgmt Fee and Bookkeeping Fees  $78M
(6)  Lower Inspections, invoices not received  $51M
(7)  Higher remodeling expenses for moving staff equipment and records  -$19M
(8)  Lower HAP payments to landlords $1,882M
(9)  Lower Port out Expenses  $258M

All HCV Properties with Sub (.fs-hcvs)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

14 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 719,354 920,313 -200,959 -22 1,227,078

 TOTAL INCOME 719,354 920,313 -200,959 -22 1,227,078

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (4,5,6) 683,760 749,016 65,256 9 998,682
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 1,984 0 -1,984 N/A 0
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (7) 26,282 33,453 7,172 21 44,605
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (8) 58,936 64,656 5,720 9 86,200
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 33,440 30,636 -2,804 -9 40,845
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES (9) 59,931 59,931 0 0 79,909
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 4,593 0 -4,593 N/A 0

 TOTAL EXPENSES 868,925 937,692 68,767 7 1,250,241

 NET INCOME -149,571 -17,379 -132,192 761 -23,163

(1)  Lower Management and Bookkeeping Fees due to lower HAP issued  -$48M
(2)  Lower Asset Mgmt Fee to be paid at yearend -$37M
(3)  Lower Admin Fee from Capital Fund to be paid before yearend  -$87M
(4)  Lower Personnel Costs  $39M
(5)  Lower Legal Expenses  $24M
(6)  Higher Consulting Expenses Accounting and CARES Act  -$9M
(7)  Lower Utility Expenses $7M
(8)  Higher Maintenance rehab offices  -$5M

Central Office Cost Center (cocc)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

15 of 127



Housing Authority of the County of Merced

 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME 54,360 53,370 990 2 71,160
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 195,248 214,425 -19,177 -9 285,907

 TOTAL INCOME 249,609 267,795 -18,186 -7 357,067

 EXPENSES

 ADMINISTRATIVE
 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (2) 56,151 63,243 7,092 11 84,327
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 0 1,206 1,206 100 1,600
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (3) 0 8,361 8,361 100 11,150
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 29,594 29,736 142 0 39,640
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 119,790 119,790 0 0 159,716
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 2,579 2,583 4 0 3,439

 TOTAL EXPENSES 208,114 224,919 16,805 7 299,872

 NET INCOME 41,495 42,876 -1,381 -3 57,195

(1)  Note paid off at The Grove $19M
(2)  Lower Legal $2M, Consult $2M
(2)  Lower Contract Exp. $8M
(3)  Pmt made Semi-Annual   $14K

Langdon Villas (langdon)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

16 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 TOTAL INCOME 132,846 148,698 -15,852 -11 198,270

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 14,520 16,146 1,626 10 21,527
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (2) 45,526 60,138 14,612 24 80,186
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (3) 20,686 29,793 9,107 31 39,705
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 2,526 1,197 -1,329 -111 1,601
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 40,350 40,347 -3 0 53,800

 TOTAL EXPENSES 123,609 147,621 24,012 16 196,819

 NET INCOME 9,238 1,077 8,161 758 1,451

(1)  Lower Commercial Rent and Utility reimbursement  -$16M
 (2)  Lower Utilities , Invoices not rec'd  $15M
(3)  Lower general Maintenance supplies and Contract Services  $9M

Obanion Learning Center (obanion)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

17 of 127



Housing Authority of the County of Merced

 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME 402,900 424,899 -21,999 -5 566,530
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 77 0 77 N/A 0

 TOTAL INCOME 402,977 424,899 -21,922 -5 566,530

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (2) 52,371 67,242 14,871 22 89,650
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (3)  64,789 75,375 10,586 14 100,492
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES 71,628 73,269 1,641 2 97,683

 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (4) 32,175 28,836 -3,339 -12 38,457
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 15,867 15,867 0 0 21,157
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 146,603 146,601 -2 0 195,471

 TOTAL EXPENSES 383,433 407,190 23,757 0 542,910

 NET INCOME 19,544 17,709 1,835 10 23,620

(1)  Lower COVID related rents $22M
(2)  Lower Pensiion Exp $18M
(3)  Lower Utilities , Invoices not rec'd $ 11M
(4)  Higher Property Insurance $3M

Felix Torres Year Round (.fs-ftyr)
Budget Comparison

Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

18 of 127



 PTD Actual  PTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 483,146 445,536 37,610 8 152,925

 OTHER INCOME
     Miscellaneous Other Income 11,427 0 11,427 N/A 0
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME (2) 11,427 0 11,427 N/A 0

 TOTAL INCOME 494,573 445,536 49,037 11 152,925

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (3,4) 88,674 130,212 41,538 32 44,094
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (5) 69,765 72,810 3,045 4 29,124
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (6) 120,499 124,614 4,115 -340 42,174
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (7) 17,800 32,076 14,276 45 9,408
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 53,388 53,388 0 0 17,124
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 30,389 30,393 4 0 10,131

 TOTAL EXPENSES 380,516 443,493 62,977 -116 152,055

 NET INCOME 114,058 2,043 112,015 -17,384 870

(1)  Higher Tennant Rent  $38M
(2)  Accounting Prior Period Adj. $11M
(3)  Lower Personnel Costs  $23M
(4)  Lower Legal And Admin Expenses  $18M
(5)  Lower Utility Expenses  $3M
(6)  Landscaping/Fencing funded by Improvement Note Payable $432M (Adj), not included in operating expenses
(7)   Property Insurance Expense up $$4M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - Property =  atw dp mid vv-bond pbcb-atw pbcb-dp pbcb-mid

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jun 2022

 

19 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

Revenue & Expenses

INCOME

     Total - Grant Income  (1) 1,237,327 1,489,586 -252,259 -17 1,489,586

TOTAL INCOME 1,237,327 1,489,586 -252,259 -17 1,489,586

EXPENSES

     Total - Center Personnel (2) 464,844 698,100 233,256 33 698,100
     Total - Operating Expenses (3) 444,934 427,840 -17,094 -4 427,840
     Total - Maintenance Expenses (4,5) 55,952 87,550 31,598 36 87,550
     Total - Contractor Administation 121,740 125,694 3,954 3 125,694
     Total - Debt Service and Replacement 149,857 150,402 545 0 150,402
          TOTAL 1,237,327 1,489,586 252,259 17 1,489,586

NET INCOME 0 0 0 0 0

(1)  Migrant Program is a zero budget program.  Merced HA is reimbursed for expenditures.
(2)  Lower Personnel Costs  $233M
(3)  Higher Supplies and Materials  $17M
(4)  Lower Contracted Maintenance  $7M
(5)  Lower Minor Rehabilitation  $22M

Financial Stmt - Migrant (.fs-mig)
Budget Comparison

Period = Jul 2021-Jun 2022

Housing Authority of the County of Merced

20 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME
 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 646,302 548,590 97,712 18 658,301
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME (2) 565,481 569,550 -4,069 -1 683,465

 TOTAL INCOME 1,211,783 1,118,140 93,643 8 1,341,766

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (3,4) 302,914 354,990 52,076 18 425,972
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 2,236 1,420 -816 -57 1,700
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 181,334 176,920 -4,414 -2 212,287
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (5) 302,688 313,160 10,472 3 375,771
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (6,7) 142,930 127,110 -15,820 -12 152,544
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 2,091 4,170 2,079 50 5,000
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 36,620 36,620 0 0 43,947
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 31,430 31,430 0 0 37,716

 TOTAL EXPENSES 1,002,243 1,045,820 43,577 4 1,254,937

 NET INCOME 209,540 72,320 137,220 190 86,829

(1)  Lower Covid related rents, not realized  $97M
(2)  Lower Operating Subsidy  -$4M
(3)  Lower Personnel Costs  $33M
(4)  Lower Asset Mgmt Fees to be paid at yearend  $17M
(5)  Lower Supplies and higher Contract Maintenance Costs  $10M
(6)  Higher Property Insurance Costs -$10M
(7)  Higher PILOT Expenses, based on higher rent revenue -$9M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - AMP 1 (.fs-amp1)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

21 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

     Total Rental Income (1) 498,463 425,920 72,543 17 511,099
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME (2) 366,897 384,160 -17,263 -4 460,996

 TOTAL INCOME 868,048 814,660 53,388 7 977,595

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (3,4,5) 199,704 248,520 42,646 17 298,227
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 1,593 1,330 -263 -20 1,600
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (6) 175,974 164,910 -11,064 -7 197,902
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (7,8) 286,988 253,780 -33,208 -13 304,498
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (9,10,11) 106,591 99,290 -7,301 -7 119,157
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 1,200 940 -260 -28 1,125
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 15,950 15,950 0 31 19,145
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 59,477 59,480 3 0 71,372

 TOTAL EXPENSES 847,477 844,200 -3,277 0 1,013,026

 NET INCOME 20,571 -29,540 50,111 -170 -35,431

(1)  Lower COVID related rent, not realized  $72M
(2)  Lower Operating Fund  -$17m
(3)  Lower Personnel Costs  $26M
(4)  Higher Legal Expenses  $4M
(5)  Lower Asset Management Fees to be paid at yearend $12M
(6)  Higherer Utilities, invoices  received in July -$11M
(7)  Higher General Maintenance Exp  -$ 18M
(8)  Higher Maintenance Supplies  -$13M
(9)  Higher Property Insurance Expense  -$7M
(10)  Higher PILOT Expenses, based on higher rent revenues  -$6M
(11)  Lower Workman's Comp. Ins. $6M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - AMP 2 (.fs-amp2)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

22 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

     Total Rental Income (1) 488,368 402,460 85,908 21 482,956
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME (2) 392,456 424,790 -32,334 -8 509,747

 TOTAL INCOME 888,499 833,750 54,749 7 1,000,503

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (3,4) 257,597 275,080 17,483 6 330,095
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 1,857 910 -947 -104 1,100
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (5) 140,374 132,230 -8,144 -6 158,688
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (6,7,8) 263,380 274,450 11,070 4 329,340
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (9,10,11) 108,155 94,320 -13,835 -15 113,185
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 2,413 1,250 -1,163 -93 1,500
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 18,400 18,400 0 0 22,083
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 48,687 48,690 3 0 58,425

 TOTAL EXPENSES 840,863 845,330 4,467 1 1,014,416

 NET INCOME 47,636 -11,580 59,216 -511 -13,913

 
(1)  Lower COVID related rents. Not realized $86M
(2)  Lower Operating Subsidy  -$32M
(3)  Lower Legal Expenses  $9M
(4)  Lower Asset Mgmr Fees to be paid at yearend $11M
(5)  Higher Utilities Expenses, invoices received in July -$9M
(6)  Lower Maintenance Personnel Expenses  $40M
(7)  Higher Maintenance Contract Services  -$23M
(8)  Higher Supplies Costs -$6M
(9)  Higher Property Insurance due to prior year experience -$8M
(10)  Higher PILOT costs due to higher Tenant Rents  -$8M
(11)  Lower Workman's Comp. $ 3M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - AMP 3 (.fs-amp3)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

23 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 18,885 11,490 7,395 64 13,782
 TOTAL GRANT INCOME 22,494 23,850 -1,356 -6 28,618

 TOTAL INCOME 41,379 35,340 6,039 17 42,400

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 7,969 10,120 2,151 21 12,198
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 2 0 -2 N/A 0
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 5,610 5,270 -340 -6 6,323
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (2,3) 15,577 5,330 -10,247 -192 6,429
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 3,604 2,770 -834 -304 3,316
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 0 80 80 100 100
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 1,020 1,020 0 0 1,221
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 33,782 39,800 -9,192 0 47,757

 TOTAL EXPENSES 67,564 64,390 -3,174 -5 77,344

 NET INCOME -26,185 -29,050 2,865 -10 -34,944

(1)  Lower COVID relanted rent, not realized $7M
(2)  Higher Building Supplies  -$3M
(3)  Higher Contract Work (Building and Landscape)  -$7M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - AMP4 - 1st Street, Merced (.fs-amp4)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

24 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 TOTAL GRANT INCOME  (1,2,3) 17,230,752 20,743,710 -3,512,958 -17 6,079,260
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 765 2,490 -1,725 -69 378

 TOTAL INCOME 17,231,517 20,746,200 -3,514,683 -17 6,079,638

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (4,5,6,7) 1,430,391 1,553,370 122,979 13 478,572
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 4,890 0 -4,890 N/A 0
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES  0 0 0 N/A 60
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (8) 31,933 20,060 -11,873 -1,148 6,018
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 65,524 74,700 9,176 12 17,052
 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS  (9,10) 16,603,612 18,997,590 2,393,978 13 5,536,761
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 63,810 63,810 0 0 18,138

 TOTAL EXPENSES 18,200,160 20,709,530 2,509,370 12 6,056,601

 NET INCOME -968,643 36,670 -931,973 -2,542 23,037

(1)  HUD withheld additional funding issued in March 2021 -$1,113M
(2)  Lower than forecasted HAP Funding -$2,210M
(3)  Higher Admin Fees  $43M
(4)  Higher Admin Salaries * Temp Salaries -$ 20M
(5)  Lower Legal Fees $8M
(6)  Lower Mgmt Fee and Bookkeeping Fees  $87M
(7)  Lower Inspections, invoices not received  $51M
(8)  Higher remodeling expenses for moving staff equipment and records  -$11M
(9)  Lower HAP payments to landlords $2,100M
(10)  Lower Port out Expenses  $289M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - All HCV Properties with Sub (.fs-hcvs)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

25 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 OTHER INCOME
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME (1,2,3) 798,593 1,022,570 -223,977 -22 1,227,078

 TOTAL INCOME 798,593 1,022,570 -223,977 -22 1,227,078

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (4,5,6) 813,041 832,240 19,199 2 998,682
 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 2,684 0 -2,684 N/A 0
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES  (7) 35,984 37,170 1,186 3 44,605
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (8) 63,646 71,840 8,194 11 86,200
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 37,090 34,040 -3,050 -9 40,845
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 66,590 66,590 0 0 79,909
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 5,249 0 -5,249 N/A 0

 TOTAL EXPENSES 1,024,284 1,041,880 17,596 7 1,250,241

 NET INCOME -225,691 -19,310 -245,001 502 -23,163

(1)  Lower Management and Bookkeeping Fees due to lower HAP issued  -$94M
(2)  Lower Asset Mgmt Fee to be paid at yearend -$34M
(3)  Lower Admin Fee from Capital Fund to be paid before yearend  -$97M
(4)  Lower Personnel Costs  $17M
(5)  Lower Legal Expenses  $2M
(6)  Higher Consulting Expenses Accounting and CARES Act  -$19M
(7)  Lower Amdin Training $18M
(8)  Higher Maintenance rehab offices  -$9M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - Central Office Cost Center (cocc)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

26 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME 60,295 59,300 995 2 71,160
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME (1) 217,030 238,250 -21,220 -9 285,907

 TOTAL INCOME 277,325 297,550 -20,225 -7 357,067

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (2) 61,268 70,270 9,002 13 84,327
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 0 1,340 1,340 100 1,600
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (3) 5,820 9,290 3,470 37 11,150
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 32,879 33,040 161 93 39,640
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 133,100 133,100 0 0 159,716
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 2,865 2,870 5 0 3,439

 TOTAL EXPENSES 235,932 249,910 13,978 60 299,872

 NET INCOME 41,393 47,640 -6,247 -13 57,195

(1)  Note paid off at The Grove $21M
(2)  Lower Legal $2M, Consult $5M
(3)  Lower Contract Exp. $3M
 

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement - Langdon Villas (langdon)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

27 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 146,487 165,220 -18,733 -11 198,270

 TOTAL INCOME 146,487 165,220 -18,733 -11 198,270

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 15,965 17,940 1,975 11 21,527
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (2) 62,922 66,820 3,898 6 80,186
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES (3) 26,219 33,103 6,884 21 39,705
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 2,763 1,330 -1,433 -108 1,601
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 44,834 44,830 -4 0 53,800

 TOTAL EXPENSES 152,703 164,023 11,320 7 196,819

 NET INCOME -6,216 1,197 -7,412 -619 1,451

(1)  Lower Commercial Rent and Utility reimbursement  -$19M
 (2)  Lower Utilities , Invoices rec'd in July  $4M
(3)  Lower general Maintenance supplies and Contract Services  $7M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Statement -Obanion Learning Center (obanion)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

28 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME (1) 447,127 472,110 -24,983 -5 566,530
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 85 0 85 N/A 0

 TOTAL INCOME 447,212 472,110 -24,898 -5 566,530

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (2) 57,943 74,713 16,771 22 89,650
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES  (3) 75,591 83,750 8,159 10 100,492
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES 79,621 81,410 1,789 2 97,683
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES  (4) 35,720 32,040 -3,680 -11 38,457
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 17,630 17,630 0 0 21,157
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 162,892 162,890 -2 0 195,471

 TOTAL EXPENSES 429,397 452,433 23,036 -5 542,910

 NET INCOME -9,271 19,677 28,948 147 23,620

(1)  Lower COVID related rents $25M
(2)  Lower Pensiion Exp $18M
(3)  Lower Utilities , Invoices not rec'd $ 8M
(4)  Higher Property Insurance $3M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Stmt - Felix Torres Year Round (.fs-ftyr)

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

29 of 127



 PTD Actual  PTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
FAV/-UNFAV FAV/-UNFAV

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 NET TENANT INCOME  (1) 534,478 495,040 39,438 8 152,925
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME  (2) 11,427 0 11,427 N/A 0

 TOTAL INCOME 545,905 495,040 50,865 10 152,925

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  (3,4) 100,020 144,680 44,660 31 44,094
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES  (5) 83,615 80,900 -2,715 -3 29,124
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES  (6,7) 142,298 138,460 -3,838 -3 42,174
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 41,395 35,640 -5,755 -16 9,408
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES  (8) 59,320 59,320 0 0 17,124
 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 33,766 33,770 4 0 10,131

 TOTAL EXPENSES 460,413 492,770 32,357 -103 152,055

 NET INCOME 85,492 2,270 83,222 3,666 870

(1)  Higher Tennant Rent  $39M
(2)  Accounting Prior Period Adj. $11M
(3)  Lower Personnel Costs  $25M
(4)  Lower Legal And Admin Expenses  $20M
(5)  Lower Utility Expenses  $4M
(6)  Landscaping/Fencing funded by Improvement Note Payable $432M (Adj), not included in operating expenses
(7)  Lower Contract Costs $6M
(8)   Property Insurance Expense up $$5M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Stmt - Property =  atw dp mid vv-bond pbcb-atw pbcb-dp pbcb-mid

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2021-Jul 2022

30 of 127



 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 
Fav/-Unfav Fav/-Unfav

 Revenue & Expenses

 INCOME

 TOTAL GRANT INCOME (1) 121,242 125,756 4,514 4 1,509,067
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 9 0 9 N/A 0

 TOTAL INCOME 121,251 125,756 4,505 4 1,509,067

 EXPENSES

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES(2) 12,678 12,483 -195 -2 149,815
 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES (3) 36,367 28,332 -8,035 -28 340,000
 TOTAL MAINTENACE EXPENSES  (4) 53,389 68,819 15,430 22 825,850
 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES (5) 6,284 2,332 -3,952 -169 28,000
 TOTAL NON-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 0 1,250 1,250 100 15,000
 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 12,534 12,534 0 0 150,402

 TOTAL EXPENSES 121,251 125,750 4,499 4 1,509,067

 NET INCOME 0 6 6 N/A 0

(1)  Migrant Program is a zero budget program.  Merced HA is reimbursed for expenditures.
(2)  Lower Personnel Costs  $233M
(3)  Higher Utility Cost - Hot Temps -$ 8M
(4)  Lower Salary Exp $ 13M
(5)  Higher Property Ins Exp.  -$ 3M

Housing Authority of the County of Merced
Financial Stmt - Migrant (.fs-mig)

Budget Comparison
Period = Jul 2022

31 of 127



Unit ID Prospective Resident Move - In Date
Security 
Deposit 
Amount

289 YES 09/19/22 $500.00

86 YES 09/30/22 $500.00

114 YES 09/30/22 $500.00

365 NO
80  Seleced From 

Waitinglist
$500.00

426 YES 09/26/22 $500.00

387 YES 09/22/22 $500.00

225 YES 09/28/22 $500.00

292 YES 09/30/22 $500.00

362 NO
80 Selected From 

Waitinglist
$500.00

3 YES 09/29/22 $500.00

476 YES 09/30/22 $500.00

430 NO
50 Selected From 

Waitinglist
$500.00

Total Number of Public Housing Units:     421     
Number of Occupied Units:                        409     
Number of Vacant Units:                            12

32 of 127



Create a 

Weekly 

Attendanc

e Report 
Enter 

Room 

name or 

number in Enter 

details in 

Attendan

ce table 

starting
Voucher Program Name

Allocation
Voucher 

Under HAP

Vouchers 

Searching

Referrals Pending 

Review/          

Documentation

Pending 

HAP 

Contract

Enter 

Period
Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) 123 113 5 4 1

Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) 68 19 31 7 11
Enter 

Teacher  Mainstream (MS5) 26 9 1 0 16

Shelter Plus Care (SPC) 8 3 1 1 3
Enter 

Course
Independent Living Program (ILP) 10 6 1 1 2

Family Unification Program (FUP) 27 23 0 1 3
Enter 

Week of
Corrdinated Entry System (CES) 150 112 1 3 34

Adult Protective Services (APS) 10 3 5 0 2
Legends 

are

Special Program Voucher Counts

33 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:               Board of Commissioners, 

Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM:         Maria Alvarado, Director of Housing & Community Development/ 
HR Manager/Clerk of the Board 

 

DATE:          August 16, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Housing Authority of the County of Merced Departmental Update 
 
Clerk of the Board 
On July 26, 2022, the Authority was notified that Commissioner Jose Resendez 
had passed away. On the same day, the Board was notified of his passing.  
 
On July 28, 2022, I notified the Board of Supervisor’s Clerk of Commissioner 
Resendez’s passing. Additionally, during this call, the Authority requested that as 
a gesture of respect for the family’s mourning, the notice of a vacant position on 
the Board be delayed by two weeks and that request was granted. Subsequently, 
Authority executive staff attended Commissioner Resendez’s funeral services on 
August 5, 2022. 
 
As the observance period expires, the Authority has prepared notice to all Public 
Housing residents regarding the position. The notice will outline the duties of the 
position as well as include the application and supplemental application that must 
be completed and returned to the Authority. Interested parties will need to not 
only complete the applications but also undergo an interview with the Board of 
Supervisors. The Board will be notified of all updates as they become available. 
 
Human Resources 
The Authority currently has nine (9) vacant positions. Those positions are 
Administrative Clerk, Board Clerk & HR Manager, Compliance Analyst, 
Development Tech, Eligibility Specialist, Maintenance Manager, Migrant Center 
Aide, and Receptionist/Typist.  
 
Of these positions, the Authority held oral panel interviews for the following, 
Administrative Clerk, Board Clerk  & HR Manager, Eligibility Specialist, 
Maintenance Manager, Migrant Center Aide, and Receptionist/Typist on July 19, 
2022.  
 
From these interviews, five (5) candidates moved forward to secondary 
interviews which were held on August 2, 2022. As of the date of this staff report, 
four (4) candidates have received conditional job offers and are pending 
onboarding. The filled positions are Maintenance Manager, Receptionist/Typist, 
Administrative Clerk, and Eligibility Specialist. The Authority will continue to 
recruit for all remaining vacant positions.  

34 of 127



 
Lastly, the contract for Grant Coordinator has been awarded and an introductory 
meeting will be set up. Once that meeting has occurred, both parties will begin 
reviewing funding opportunities. 
 
Development  
The Authority oversees ten (10) units at the Felix Torres Farmworker Housing 
Center that were funded via a grant known as the Joe Serna Farmworker 
Housing Grant (USDA/HCD). These units were initially intended to house migrant 
(seasonal) families, however, after the closure of the Planada Village Center and 
the lengthy construction of the Felix Torres Housing Center, the Authority has 
experienced difficulties leasing both the seasonal OMS-funded migrant units, but 
also the USDA-funded units. 
 
Steadily the lease-up numbers for the OMS-funded units have increased and in 
recent years the Authority has nearly reached full occupancy. The USDA units 
however remain vacant. The Authority submitted a request to HCD petitioning to 
convert the units to year-round housing versus seasonal housing. The request 
has been granted and Authority staff have met to begin leasing the units. This 
approval allows the Authority to lease up said units with greater ease. The units 
will remain exclusively for agricultural working residents. 
 
On July 26, 2022, the Authority videoconferenced with representatives from Linc 
Housing and Merced County regarding a future affordable housing complex in 
the City of Merced. The developing agency was awarded the contract for the 
“Affordable Housing Development Opportunities” RFP issued by the City of 
Merced on April 1, 2021. The development agency inquired about obtaining 
Project-Based Vouchers from the Authority as they require them for the project. 
The development would be located on the intersections of 18th/19th Street and I 
Street, here in the City of Merced. The Authority informed the attendees that it 
has a pending request with HUD for increasing the PBV allocation, however, until 
approval or denial is received, the Authority cannot issue an RFP for PBV, as this 
is the only way they would be able to obtain them since their funding plan 
requires them.  
 
On July 19, 2022, the Authority received notification from CalAHA that the 
blueprints for the small homes were officially available for our use. On July 26, 
2022, the Authority met at CalAHA offices to review the blueprints (attached to 
this staff report), the approximate cost of each home, and discuss the number of 
units the Authority wishes to build. The approximate number of units the site 
could feasibly build is twenty-two (22), however, for each unit to have ample 
space and to ensure privacy and comfort for existing and new residents, the 
number will be lower. The exact number is yet to be determined. CalAHA will 
move on to the next site to evaluate the other vacant lots. 

35 of 127



The Authority continues to await a response from HUD regarding its request to 
convert the Oak Terrace Apartments, currenty market rate apartments, into 
public housing.  
 
The Retreat, otherwise refered to as Childs & B, is now live and taking resident 
applications. This project is a partnership between the Authority and Central 
Valley Coalition for Affordable Housing. The Authority allocated thirty (30) PBV 
vouchers for this site. Recipients of these vouchers required Authority screening 
and all require be selected from a waiting list.  
 
The Authority is awaiting an update on the Mercy Village project located at 3015 
Park Avenue, Merced. This project is a partnership between the Authority and 
UP Holdings California, LLC. This site is the recipient of “No Place Like Home” 
funding. The Authority issued a Letter of Intent allocating sixty-five (65) that will 
house people experiencing or are at risk of homelessness.  
 
The Authority reviewed two Notices of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the 
development of affordable housing. The first was the Rural Capacity Building for 
Community Development and Affordable Housing Grants (RCB). This funding is 
targeted to carry out affordable housing and community development activities in 
rural areas for the benefit of low- and moderate-income families and persons. 
Unfortunately, this NOFA only permits 501(c)(3) organizations to apply for said 
funds therefore the Authority cannot apply. 
 

 
 
 

36 of 127



The second notice is the Continuum of Care Competition and Noncompetitive 
Award of Youth Homeless Demonstration Program Renewal and Replacement 
Grants. Further research on this NOFA is being conducted. If applicable and 
allowable to the Authority, a grant funds request will be prepared and submitted. 
Updates will be provided as they become available. 
 
The Authority was contacted by AM Consulting Engineers on behalf of the 
Planada Community Services District regarding a possible test well construction 
on the Authority-owned vacant lot located on Gerard Avenue. In the event of 
successful well testing, the Planada Communicty Services District will purchase a 
portion of the land and a new well will be constructed at that site. Additionally, the 
remaining land will be annexed to the Planada Community Services District, 
allowing the Authority access to that water for future development(s). This 
annexation would be critical as currently the lot sits outside of their jurisdiction 
and does not have access to water or other services. 

37 of 127



38 of 127



39 of 127



40 of 127



41 of 127



42 of 127



43 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Carbon Monoxide Detector 
Conversion 

 
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) has procured for a project to 
convert all of the battery-operated Carbon Monoxide (CO) detectors to be hard-wired at 
all of the Authority’s Public Housing developments and Valley View properties. In 
compliance with the Authority’s Procurement Policy, an Invitation for Bids (IFB) was 
issued on May 21st, 2022 to solicit for sealed bids. 
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing twenty-five (25) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on June 28th, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference held 
online on June 29th, 2022.  The Authority received 3 bids that were opened alphabetically 
with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc. – Fresno, CA $489,000
RMS Life Safety – Signal Hill, CA $1,403,081
STW Construction Inc. – Fresno, CA $736,500

 
The bid submitted by Beam Construction and Management Inc. is responsive and 
complete. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not 
result in any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications. Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. is an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) 
business. All references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-10, awarding the Carbon Monoxide 
Detector Conversion contract to Beam Construction and Management Inc. and authorize 
the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry 
out the completion of the work. 

44 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-10  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR CARBON 
MONOXIDE DETECTOR CONVERSION AT ALL HOUSING 
AUTHORITY PUBLIC HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS AND VALLEY 
VIEW PROPERTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced budgeted Capital 
Funds for carbon monoxide detector conversion for all Public Housing 
Developments and Valley View properties, using some of the Capital Fund grant 
for 2020; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to twenty-five (25) construction companies, and  
 

WHEREAS, three (3) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County 
of Merced by the due date of June 28th, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Beam and 
Company Inc., Fresno, California in the amount of $489,000.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-10 awarding a construction contract to Beam 
and Company Inc., Fresno, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $489,000.00 for carbon 
monoxide detector conversion of four hundred and sixty (460) units of all 
public housing developments and Valley View properties. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Beam 
and Company Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Beam and Company Inc. in the amount of $489,000.00, and does hereby authorize 
the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary to ensure 
compliance of the contract. 
  

45 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 

46 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Atwater Migrant Center Roofing, 
Gutters, and Swamp Coolers 

 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year, the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to remove and replace roofing materials, repair 
damages to eaves and sheathing, removal and replacement of gutter and downspouts, 
removal and disposal of current swamp cooler units, removal and replacement of fascia 
trim pieces, and complete any dry rot repairs at the Authority’s Atwater Migrant Center 
property. 
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing twenty-nine (29) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on August 1st, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference 
held online on August 2nd, 2022.  The Authority received 3 bids that were opened 
alphabetically with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc.– Fresno, CA. $629,000
Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. – Fresno, CA. $937,500
Marvulli, Inc. – Merced, CA. $638,000

 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 
on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. the Atwater Migrant Center Roof, Gutter, and Swamp Cooler contract. 
However as per the Agency procurement policy, staff is complying with the requirement 
for the Board of Commissioners to approve contracts over $100,000. 
 
The bid submitted by Beam Construction and Management Inc. is responsive and 
complete. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not 

47 of 127



result in any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications. Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. is an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) 
business. All references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-11, awarding the Atwater Migrant 
Center Roofing, Gutters, and Swamp Coolers contract to Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take 
any other action necessary to carry out the completion of the work. 

48 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-11  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ROOF 
REPLACEMENT, GUTTER REPLACEMENT, AND SWAMP 
COOLER REMOVAL AT ATWATER MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Atwater Migrant 
Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to twenty-nine (29) construction companies, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, three (3) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County 
of Merced by the due date of August 1st, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Beam Construction 
and Management Inc., Fresno, California in the amount of $629,000.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-11 awarding a construction contract to Beam 
Construction and Management Inc., Fresno, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $629,000.00 for roof 
replacement, gutter replacement, and swamp cooler removals on thirty-one 
(31) buildings at the Atwater Migrant Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Beam Construction and Management Inc. in the amount of $629,000.00, and does 
hereby authorize the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary 
to ensure compliance of the contract. 
  

49 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 

50 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Los Banos Migrant Center Roofing, 
Gutters, and Swamp Coolers 

 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to remove and replace roofing materials, repair 
damages to eaves and sheathing, removal and replacement of gutter and downspouts, 
removal and disposal of current swamp cooler units, removal and replacement of fascia 
trim pieces, and complete any dry rot repairs at the Authority’s Los Banos Migrant Center 
property. 
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing twenty-nine (29) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on August 1st, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference 
held online on August 2nd, 2022.  The Authority received 2 bids that were opened 
alphabetically with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc. – Fresno, CA. $588,000
Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. – Fresno, CA. $932,050

 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 
on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. the Los Banos Migrant Center Roof, Gutter, and Swamp Cooler 
contract. However as per the Agency procurement policy, staff is complying with the 
requirement for the Board of Commissioners to approve contracts over $100,000. 
 
The bid submitted by Beam Construction and Management Inc. is responsive and 
complete. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not 
result in any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications. Beam 

51 of 127



Construction and Management Inc. is an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) 
business. All references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-12, awarding the Los Banos Migrant 
Center Roofing, Gutters, and Swamp Coolers contract to Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take 
any other action necessary to carry out the completion of the work. 

52 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-12  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ROOF 
REPLACEMENT, GUTTER REPLACEMENT, AND SWAMP 
COOLER REMOVAL AT LOS BANOS MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Los Banos 
Migrant Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to twenty-nine (29) construction companies, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, two (2) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County of 
Merced by the due date of August 1st, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Beam Construction 
and Management Inc., Fresno, California in the amount of $588,000.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-12 awarding a construction contract to Beam 
Construction and Management Inc., Fresno, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $588,000.00 for roof 
replacement, gutter replacement, and swamp cooler removals on twenty-
eight (28) buildings at the Los Banos Migrant Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Beam Construction and Management Inc. in the amount of $588,000.00, and does 
hereby authorize the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary 
to ensure compliance of the contract. 
  

53 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Merced Migrant Center Roofing, 
Gutters, and Swamp Coolers 

 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year, the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to remove and replace roofing materials, repair 
damages to eaves and sheathing, removal and replacement of gutter and downspouts, 
removal and disposal of current swamp cooler units, removal and replacement of fascia 
trim pieces, and complete any dry rot repairs at the Authority’s Merced Migrant Center 
property. 
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing twenty-nine (29) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on August 4th, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference 
held online on August 5th, 2022.  The Authority received 5 bids that were opened 
alphabetically with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc. – Fresno, CA. $647,000
Best Contracting Services, Inc. – Gardena, CA. $1,683,905
Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. – Fresno, CA. $1,209,500
Marvulli, Inc. – Merced, CA. $755,000
Nations Roofing – Fresno, CA. $1,062,000

 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 
on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. the Merced Migrant Center Roof, Gutter, and Swamp Cooler contract. 
However as per the Agency procurement policy, staff is complying with the requirement 
for the Board of Commissioners to approve contracts over $100,000. 
 

55 of 127



 
The bid submitted by Beam Construction and Management Inc. is responsive and 
complete. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not 
result in any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications. Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. is an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) 
business. All references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-13, awarding the Merced Migrant 
Center Roofing, Gutters, and Swamp Coolers contract to Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take 
any other action necessary to carry out the completion of the work. 

56 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-13  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ROOF 
REPLACEMENT, GUTTER REPLACEMENT, AND SWAMP 
COOLER REMOVAL AT MERCED MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Merced Migrant 
Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to twenty-nine (29) construction companies, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, five (5) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County of 
Merced by the due date of August 4th, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Beam Construction 
and Management Inc., Fresno, California in the amount of $647,000.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-13 awarding a construction contract to Beam 
Construction and Management Inc., Fresno, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $647,000.00 for roof 
replacement, gutter replacement, and swamp cooler removals on twenty-
five (25) buildings at the Merced Migrant Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Beam Construction and Management Inc. in the amount of $647,000.00, and does 
hereby authorize the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary 
to ensure compliance of the contract. 
  

57 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Felix Torres Migrant Center Roofing 
 
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year, the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to provide roofing removal and replacement, of 
approximately 4000 sq./ft of roofing from a combination of 16 duplex apartments and also 
conduct dry-rot repairs as needed at the Authority’s Felix Torres Migrant Center.  
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing twenty-nine (29) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on August 4th, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference 
held online on August 5th, 2022.  The Authority received 3 bids that were opened 
alphabetically with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam & Company Inc. – Fresno, CA. $145,000
Best Contractor Service, Inc. – Gardena, CA. $154,028
Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. – Fresno, CA. $83,600

 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 
on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. the Felix 
Torres Migrant Center Roof contract. However as per the Agency procurement policy, 
staff is complying with the requirement for the Board of Commissioners to approve 
contracts over $100,000. 
 

59 of 127



The bid submitted by Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. is responsive and complete. Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not result in any 
disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications. Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. 
is an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) business. All references that were called 
gave good reviews and confirmed that Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. fully completed their 
projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-14, awarding the Felix Torres Migrant 
Center Roofing contract to Fresno Roofing Co., Inc. and authorize the Executive Director, 
Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the completion of 
the work. 

60 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-14 
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ROOF REPAIR 
AND REPLACEMENT AT FELIX TORRES MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Felix Torres 
Migrant Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to twenty-nine (29) construction companies, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, three (3) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County 
of Merced by the due date of August 4th, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Fresno Roofing 
Co., Fresno, California in the amount of $83,600.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-14 awarding a construction contract to Fresno 
Roofing Co., Fresno, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $83,600.00 for roof 
replacement of approximately 4000 sq./ft. and dry rot repairs as needed on 
sixteen (16) buildings at the Felix Torres Migrant Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Fresno 
Roofing Co. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Fresno Roofing Co. in the amount of $83,600.00, and does hereby authorize the 
Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary to ensure 
compliance of the contract. 
  

61 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Merced Migrant Center Mini Split 
Installation 

 
 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to install mini split units at the Authority’s Merced 
Migrant Center property. 
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing forty-three (43) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on August 3rd, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference 
held online on August 4th, 2022.  The Authority received 3 bids that were opened 
alphabetically with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc. – Fresno, CA $334,500
Blaine Inc. AC1 – Merced, CA $389,934
Central Valley Air Conditioning Inc. – Atwater, CA $330,505
STW Contractors Inc. – Selma, CA $323,000

 
Beam Construction and Management Inc. is a qualified Section 3 business which gives 
their firm a bid preference. After the bid preference adjustment, their bid amount becomes 
$311,364.65 meaning their bid is now the lowest. This does not change the final contract 
amount, but it does affect the ranking of the bids. 
 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 

63 of 127



on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Beam Construction and 
Management Inc. the Merced Migrant Center Mini Split Installation contract. However as 
per the Agency procurement policy, staff is complying with the requirement for the Board 
of Commissioners to approve contracts over $100,000. 
 
The bid submitted by Beam Construction and Management Inc. is responsive and 
complete. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not 
result in any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications. Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. is an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) 
business. All references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-15, awarding the Merced Migrant 
Center Mini Split contract to Beam Construction and Management Inc. and authorize the 
Executive Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry out 
the completion of the work. 
 

64 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-15  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR MINI-SPLIT HVAC 
UNIT INSTALLATION AT MERCED MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Merced Migrant 
Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to forty-three (43) construction companies, and  
 

WHEREAS, four (4) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County of 
Merced by the due date of August 3rd, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Beam Construction 
and Management Inc., Fresno, California in the amount of $334,500.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-15 awarding a construction contract to Beam 
Construction and Management Inc., Fresno, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $334,500.00 for mini-
split HVAC unit installation in forty-nine (49) units at the Merced Migrant 
Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Beam 
Construction and Management Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Beam Construction and Management Inc. in the amount of $334,500.00, and does 
hereby authorize the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary 
to ensure compliance of the contract. 
  

65 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 
 

66 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Atwater Migrant Center Mini Splits 
Installation 

 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to install mini split units at the Authority’s Atwater 
Migrant Center property.  
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids. The Authority 
advertised by mailing forty-three (43) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the 
Valley Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on July 27th, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference held 
online on July 28th, 2022.  The Authority received 5 bids that were opened alphabetically 
with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc. – Fresno, CA. $467,000
Blaine Inc. – Merced, CA. $469,522
Central Valley Air Conditioning – Atwater, CA. $401,296
Mel’s Heating and Air Inc. – Turlock, CA. $630,356
STW Contractors, Inc. – Selma, CA $377,000

 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 
on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Central Valley Air Conditioning Inc. 
the Atwater Migrant Center Mini Split Installation contract. However as per the Agency 
procurement policy, staff is complying with the requirement for the Board of 
Commissioners to approve contracts over $100,000. 
 

67 of 127



The bid submitted by Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. is responsive and complete. 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not result in 
any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications Central Valley Air 
Conditioning, Inc. is not an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) business. All 
references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Central Valley Air 
Conditioning, Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-16, awarding the Atwater Mini Split 
Installation contract to Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. and authorize the Executive 
Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the 
completion of the work. 

68 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-16  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR MINI-SPLIT HVAC 
UNIT INSTALLATION AT ATWATER MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Atwater Migrant 
Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to forty-three (43) HVAC contractors, and  
 

WHEREAS, five (5) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County of 
Merced by the due date of July 27th, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Central Valley Air 
Conditioning, Inc., Atwater, California in the amount of $401,296.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-16 awarding a construction contract to Central 
Valley Air Conditioning, Inc., Atwater, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $401,296.00 for mini-
split HVAC unit installation in fifty-nine (59) units at the Atwater Migrant 
Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Central 
Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. in the amount of $401,296.00, and does 
hereby authorize the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary 
to ensure compliance of the contract. 
  

69 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 
 
 

70 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-17  
 

APPROVING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR MINI-SPLIT HVAC 
UNIT INSTALLATION AT LOS BANOS MIGRANT CENTER AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACT  
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Merced was awarded funds by 
Office of Migrant Services for capital needs improvements at the Los Banos 
Migrant Center; and  
 

WHEREAS, the project was advertised in compliance with the Housing Authority 
of the County of Merced procurement policy and notices were sent to the Valley 
Builders Exchange and were obtained by State/National database construction 
companies. Letters were also sent to forty-three (43) HVAC contractors, and  
 

WHEREAS, three (3) bids were received by the Housing Authority of the County 
of Merced by the due date of July 27th, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the lowest, most responsive bid was submitted by Central Valley Air 
Conditioning, Inc., Atwater, California in the amount of $328,559.00;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced hereby: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2022-17 awarding a construction contract to Central 
Valley Air Conditioning, Inc., Atwater, California. 
 

2. Approves the expenditure of funds in the amount of $328,559.00 for mini-
split HVAC unit installation in forty-eight (48) units at the Los Banos Migrant 
Center. 
 

3. Non-compliance of the contract will result in the disqualification of Central 
Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced does hereby approve awarding the contract to 
Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. in the amount of $328,559.00, and does 
hereby authorize the Executive Director, to sign or take any other action necessary 
to ensure compliance of the contract. 
  

71 of 127



The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022 Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 
 
 
 

72 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners,  
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 

FROM: Melina Frederick, Director of Development and Asset Management 
 

DATE: September 20th, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation to Award Contract: Los Banos Migrant Center Mini 
Splits Installation 

 
The Housing Authority of the County of Merced (Authority) oversees four (4) seasonal 
migrant centers in the County of Merced. During this year the Authority was notified that 
the State awarded funds for capital needs improvements. The Office of Migrant Services 
(OMS) required that the Authority follows both the State and HUD requirements to 
procure, award, and expend the funds. The Authority issued an Invitation for Bids (IFB) 
on July 6th, 2022 to solicit for a project to install mini split units at the Authority’s Los Banos 
Migrant Center property. 
 
The Authority is required by the procurement policy to seek sealed bids.  We advertised 
by mailing forty-three (43) solicitation letters, forwarded the IFB package to the Valley 
Builders Exchange, and made it available on the Authority website.  
 
Bids were due on July 27th, 2022 and opened publicly via a virtual video conference held 
online on July 28th, 2022.  The Authority received 3 bids that were opened alphabetically 
with the following results:   

  
Contractor Name and City that they are from Bid Price
Beam Construction and Management Inc. – Fresno, CA. $396,000
Central Valley Air Conditioning – Atwater, CA. $328,559
Mel’s Heating and Air Inc. – Turlock, CA. $512,832

 
As part of the State requirements, prior to issuing any solicitation for the migrant center 
capital needs projects, the Authority must submit all scopes of work for review and 
approval. In addition, once all solicitations are closed, all responses must be forwarded 
to the State.  
 
The State approves and authorizes the Authority to notify vendors of any awards of said 
contracts/responses to IFBs. The State has reviewed all solicitations received and based 
on the State findings, the recommendation is to award Central Valley Air Conditioning Inc. 
the Los Banos Migrant Center Mini Split Installation contract. However as per the Agency 
procurement policy, staff is complying with the requirement for the Board of 
Commissioners to approve contracts over $100,000. 
 
The bid submitted by Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. is responsive and complete. 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required background research did not result in 

73 of 127



any disbarments, limited participation and/or other disqualifications Central Valley Air 
Conditioning, Inc. is not an accredited Better Business Bureau (“BBB”) business. All 
references that were called gave good reviews and confirmed that Central Valley Air 
Conditioning, Inc. fully completed their projects on time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 
the County of Merced adopt Resolution No. 2022-17, awarding the Los Banos Mini Split 
Installation contract to Central Valley Air Conditioning, Inc. and authorize the Executive 
Director, Rosa Vazquez, to sign or take any other action necessary to carry out the 
completion of the work. 

74 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-18  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF MERCED HONORING THE MEMORY OF 

COMMISSIONER JOSE MANUEL RESENDEZ JR. 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Jose Manuel Resendez Jr., born January 12, 1947, 
dedicated twelve years of service to the Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
(Authority);  
 

WHEREAS, throughout his tenure on this Board and until the time of his passing 
on July 26, 2022, Commissioner Jose Manuel Resendez Jr., contributed his efforts 
and his long-term vision for the residents of the Public Housing program, the 
residents of Merced County, and the future of the Authority, and  
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Jose Manuel Resendez also brought guidance, her 
also brought his wit and will be dearly and deeply missed;  
 
NOW, THREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced express their appreciation, publicly and 
formally, to Commissioner Jose Manuel Resendez Jr. for the dedicated service he 
rendered to the Housing Authority of the Count of Merced: 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority of the County of Merced hereby honors the memory of Jose Manuel 
Resendez Jr., for a life of outstanding service and extraordinary contributions to 
the Housing Authority of the County of Merced.  
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at the September 20th, 2022, Board of 
Commissioners meeting and adopted by the following vote: 
 
 

Motion:        Second:  
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Absent:  
 

Abstain:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the County of Merced           Dated: September 20, 2022 
 

75 of 127



STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners, 
  Housing Authority of the County of Merced 
 
FROM: David G. Ritchie, General Counsel 
 
DATE: September 20, 2022 
  

 SUBJECT: Action Item No.  2022-A-02 – Consideration of Action of the Board 
of Commissioner of the Housing Authority of the County of Merced regarding 
Payoff Demand, Substitution of Trustee & Reconveyance of Deed for 1522 Vine 
Circle, Atwater, CA 95301.   
 

1522 Vine Circle in Atwater, CA 95301 was a property previously owned by the Housing 
Authority and sold in October, 2006 to the current owner, Patrocinio Arambula as part of 
the Homeownership Opportunity Program (HACM – HOP). 
 
This program transitioned lessees into homeowners when they were able to obtain 
financing for a first mortgage and frequently the Housing Authority would retain a “silent 
second” that was subordinate to the primary lender for any balance.  Lessees would have 
a reserve account into which the Housing Authority would make deposits during the 
period preceding the sale from the rents received, and the tenant/lessee would use the 
amount accrued in the reserve account as the down payment for the purchase. 
 
The purchase of 1522 Vine Circle under HACM – HOP was for $85,308.00, a sum 
obtained by the purchaser and separately financed.  The balance of the purchase price 
was $184,692.00 contained in a promissory note with the Housing Authority and recorded 
against the title in a Deed of Trust as document no. 2006-085972, this “second” was 
subordinate to the first mortgage. 
 
The homeowner sought to sell the property and the escrow officer sent a request for a 
payoff demand along with a substitution of trustee and full reconveyance of the deed.  
Legal reviewed the request and made outreach to the Escrow officer about the payoff 
demand.  Certain HACM home ownership programs from the time period have included 
provisions for forgiveness of the amount owed under the silent second.  Upon review of 
the request, the recorded Substitution of Trustee and Deed of Trust, and all available 
documents relating to the original sale of the property by the Housing Authority, legal was 
unable to determine whether the Promissory Note or transaction contemplated a 
forgiveness or loan reduction for this specific transaction. 
 
 Absent explicit provisions within the promissory note allowing for a modification and 
reduction or forgiveness of the loan principal amount, the Board would have to consider 
findings that such a forgiveness serves a public purpose and thus is a proper use of public 
funds prior to any approval.  Because the Board was unable to consider this prior to the 
close of escrow, payment was tendered and is currently being held by the Housing 
Authority pending direction and findings from the Board of Commissioners.  The Housing 
Authority has provided a substitution of trustee and full reconveyance as a consequence 
of the issuance of payment. 

76 of 127



 
Legal Framework:  Generally, California Constitution art. XVI, Section 6 prohibits gifts of 
public funds.  An appropriation benefitting a private party constitutes an unconstitutional 
gift of public funds if the public agency receives no adequate consideration in exchange 
for the expenditure (Allen v. Hussey (1950) 101 CA2d 457, 473) or if the expenditure does 
not fulfil a public purpose (County of Alameda v. Janssen (1940) 16C2d 276. 281).  This 
prohibition against gifts of public funds does not preclude expenditures and 
disbursements for public purposes, even if a private person incidentally benefits. 
(Redevelopment Agency of San Pablo v. Shepard (1977) 75 CA3d 453,457).  The 
determination of a public purpose lies with the legislative body; the concept is liberally 
construed and the legislative action is upheld unless it is totally arbitrary. (Mannheim v. 
Superior Court (1970) 3 C3d 678, 691; Community Mem. Hosp. v. County of Ventura 
(1996) 50 CA4th 199, 207). 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
As this involves Board discretion, staff make no recommendation, however highlight that 
previous boards have found public purposes in approving expenditures that support first-
time home ownership programs. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
If the Board finds a public purpose, staff would reimburse the seller (Arambula) in a 
manner consistent with Board direction; if it did not, staff would deposit payment as 
tendered and no reimbursement would be issued. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Home Ownership Program agreements, leases and Documents related to recorded Deed 
of Trust 
 

 

77 of 127



78 of 127



79 of 127



80 of 127



81 of 127



82 of 127



83 of 127



84 of 127



85 of 127



86 of 127



87 of 127



88 of 127



89 of 127



90 of 127



91 of 127



92 of 127



93 of 127



94 of 127



95 of 127



96 of 127



97 of 127



98 of 127



99 of 127



100 of 127



101 of 127



102 of 127



103 of 127



104 of 127



105 of 127



106 of 127



107 of 127



108 of 127



109 of 127



110 of 127



111 of 127



112 of 127



113 of 127



114 of 127



115 of 127



116 of 127



117 of 127



118 of 127



119 of 127



120 of 127



121 of 127



122 of 127



123 of 127



124 of 127



125 of 127



126 of 127



127 of 127


	9-20-22 Agenda - Regular Meeting
	7-13-22 Minutes - Special Meeting
	08 Aug 2022 Baord Aged July - Final
	09 Sept 2022 Baord Aged Aug -  Run 9-01-2022
	08 Aug 2022 Board Financials June
	09 Sept 2022 Board Financials July - No 2
	Occupied-Vacant Report 8.2022
	HCV Special Program Counts 8.2022
	Staff Report - Development-HR-COB
	Small Homes Blue Prints & Cost Breakdown
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-10 - Apprv. CO Detector Conv.
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-10 - Apprv CO Detector Conv.
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-11 - Apprv. Atwater Roof
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-11 - Apprv Atwater Roof (002)
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-12 - Apprv. LB Roof
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-12 - Apprv Los Banos Roof
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-13 - Apprv. Merced Roof
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-13 - Apprv Merced Roof
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-14 - Apprv. Felix Torres Roof
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-14 - Apprv Felix Torres Roof
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-15 - Apprv Mini Split Merced
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-15 - Apprv. Mini Split Merced
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-16 - Apprv. Atwater Mini Split
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-16 - Apprv Atwater Mini Split
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-17 - Apprv LB Mini Split
	9-20-2022 Staff Report - Resolution No. 2022-17 - Apprv. LB Mini Split
	9-20-2022 Resolution No. 2022-18 - Honoring Comm. Jose Resendez
	9-20-22 Ation Item 2022-A-02 Reconveyance 1522 Vine Circle
	SKM_364e22080914550
	SKM_364e22080914551
	SKM_364e22081012130
	SKM_364e22081012133
	SKM_364e22081012134
	SKM_364e22081012160



